
Amendment to the Request for Proposals (RFP) 
 
                  Issued By: 
 The State of Connecticut Children’s Trust Fund 

    
      Nurturing Families Network (NFN) 
                      Expansion of Program Services in New Haven 
 
 
Questions from the New Haven NFN Proposers Conference Jan 16, 2007 
 
 

Forms and Financial Information 
 
1. Question: Does a non-profit organization need to submit the forms   

required by the State Elections Enforcement Commission? 
 

Answer: Yes 
 
2. Question: Do small organizations need to submit the financial       

information required under Section (3), Organizational Profile, item (d) 
on page 10? 

 
Answer: Yes. 

 
3. Question: Are Agency Vendor forms and W9 forms required from 

municipal government agencies? 
 

Answer: Yes.  The information provided on these forms is necessary to enter 
a contract (if awarded) in the State’s centralized financial system. 
 

4. Question: The RFP limits the application to 60 pages which includes all 
required forms.  Does that limit include the audits, letters of reference, 
organizational charts?  

Answer: Yes. The state is not requiring that you submit a complete audit 
report. You are required to submit only the two (2) required annual financial 
statements prepared by an independent Certified Public Accountant, and 
reviewed or audited in accordance with GAAP. 

 
Joint Proposals  

 
5. Question: Can two agencies collaborate on one proposal? 
 

Answer: Yes, if only one of the agencies submits a proposal. 



 
6. Question: Are proposers allowed to sub-contract for services? 
 

Answer: No. The RFP does not make provisions for sub-contractors. 
Sub-contractors are not allowed. 

 
7. Question: Do current ongoing contracts with another NFN proposer 

constitute any conflict of interest? 
 

Answer: No 
 
8. Question: May a proposer submit 2 proposals and be a sub-contractor 

in another program? 
 

Answer: Proposers may submit a maximum of two (2) proposals in response 
to the RFP, provided the proposals cover different service areas.  Each 
proposal must be self-contained and packaged separately. The RFP does not 
make provisions for sub-contractors.  Sub-contractors are not allowed. 

9. Question: May we subcontract for the clinical supervisor position, the 
nurturing parenting group coordinator and 
the children's group facilitator or do these positions have to be 
employees of the contractor? 

Answer: All required staff must be hired as employees of the contractor.  

10. Question: May one proposal cover multiple service areas? 
 

Answer: No. A proposer must designate a service area within New Haven in 
one of the five designated neighborhoods in the RFP.  Proposers may submit 
a maximum of two (2) proposals in response to the RFP, provided the 
proposals cover different service areas.  Each proposal must be self-
contained and packaged separately. 

 
11. Question: Must an organization already have an office in its proposed   

service area? 
 

Answer: No. The proposer must have its administrative office located in the 
city of New Haven. 

 
References 
 

12. Questions: What types of client references are being sought? 
 

Answer: For purposes of the references required by this RFP under Section 
3(e), "client" is defined as a individual or group of individuals, corporation, 



organization, or government entity that has purchased, used, been served by, 
or otherwise benefited from the proposer's services.  Provide the following 
information for each reference: name, title (if applicable), name of company (if 
applicable), address, and telephone number.  

 
Program 

 
13. Question: What is definition of a first time parent? 
 

Answer: Someone who is raising a child for the first time.  
 
14. Question: Are you required to provide both the intensive Home Visiting 

services and the Nurturing Parenting Group? 
 

Answer: Yes 
 

15. Question: The RFP states that sites must have an agreement with a 
hospital in their proposed service area. New Haven has two hospitals. 
Do we need to have a Memorandum of Agreement with both hospitals? 
Do they have to be developed prior to the award of the contract? 

  
Answer: The Memorandum of Agreement with the hospital and other NFN 
service providers in New Haven will be established after the contracts have 
been awarded. 

 
16. Question:  Are parents who receive home visits required to also 

participate in the parenting groups? 
 
Answer: No 

 
17. Question:  Is each grantee required to establish an Advisory Board 

within their designated service area?  
  
Answer: Yes. 

18. Question: Must all who participate in NFN be first time parents? 

Answer: All parents who participate in the home visiting and Connections 
program must be first time families at the time they enroll. 

Network 
 
19. Question: Does the Hartford model have a citywide consortium of NFN 

providers to coordinate services? 
 

Answer: Yes 



 
20. Question: How is citywide collaboration and communication 

encouraged and ensured? 
 

Answer: The staff of the NFN sites meets on a regular basis to discuss a 
variety of topics related to program implementation, their roles, training needs 
and policy matters. 

 
21. Question: How will implementation be coordinated across the 9 NFN 

contractors covering the city? 
 

Answer: A system for coordinating referrals from the prenatal clinics and the 
hospitals to and among the sites will be developed.  

22. Will the existing NFN sites within New Haven have a designated service 
area? 

Answer: Yes 

23. Question: How will NFN address the high family mobility rate in New 
Haven? Will providers continue to serve families that move out of their 
service area and into the area of another provider? 

 
Answer: The program site would have the option of continuing to work with a 
family that moved within the city.  The family may choose to be referred to the 
site closest to their new location. 

 
24. Question: What is the number of families each provider is expected to 

serve? 
 

Answer: Home visitors make between 12 to 15 home visits a week or 48 to 60 
home visits per month. The number of families on the home visitor’s caseload 
may range from 12 families they visit each week to 25 families they visit less 
frequently. The Nurturing Parenting group enrolls a minimum of six to a 
maximum of 16 parents and children in the program.  

 
25. Question: What is the desired total caseload to be managed by one 

clinical supervisor? 
 

Answer: The clinical supervisor does not carry a caseload. A full time clinical 
supervisor may supervise up to five program staff.  

26. Question: Does the Clinical Supervisor position have to be one full time 
equivalent or may we subcontract for 2 part-time clinical supervisors. 



Answer: Each site must have one full time clinical supervisor. This position 
must be filled by only one individual. 

27. Question: The Policy Manual states that the clinical supervisors 
conduct the Kempe Family Assessment; yet there is a job description 
for a family assessment worker, please clarify. 

Answer: The older NFN sites were established with a Family Assessment 
Worker (FAW) position. The FAW job description refers to those positions. 

In the newer sites the assessment function has been assigned to the clinical 
supervisor. Home visitors may also be trained to conduct assessments after 
they have completed one year of employment with the NFN program.  

Please see the NFN Policy Manual, 2007 Edition, for an up to date listing of 
staff, staffing requirements and job descriptions. The 2007 edition of the 
manual is available at www.ct.gov./ctf

28. Question: Are the six agencies that awarded contracts also required to 
establish a citywide board comprised of families and other community 
agencies? 

Answer: No. The Children's Trust Fund will establish a citywide network of the 
9 NFN providers.  The Manual states that a home visitor should not carry a 
caseload of more than 25. At the meeting the estimate for a home visitor 
caseload was no more than 7 or 8. Please clarify the discrepancy in the 
caseload size. 

29. Question: Is the data collected electronically and then submitted to 
University of Hartford, or is it collected on paper and submitted as a 
hard copy to University of Hartford? 

Answer:  The hard copy of the documentation is submitted to the University of 
Hartford. 

30. Question: Does the Children's Trust Fund have a "cash fund" for 
families in Crisis (similar to the Starfish fund at the Connecticut Health 
Foundation, which awards cash to CBO's to provide one time cash 
assistance to families in crisis)? 

Answer: No 

31. Question: May the contracting agency bill insurance companies for the 
mental health services they are providing to the NFN clients? 

Answer:  The NFN does not provide mental health services to participants.  

http://www.ct.gov./ctf


32. Question: Can 211 be considered a warm line in the event of an after 
hours or weekend crisis? 

 
Answer: A warm line would handle less than critical questions after hours or 
over the weekend. Parent should be instructed to contact 911 or another 
appropriate place in the event of a crisis.  
Contact 211 directly to inquire about its capacity to assist with after hours or 
weekend crisis. 

 
33. Question: If we have a question can we only contact Jacqueline Lewis? 
 

Answer: Proposers may only contact Jacqueline Lewis, the Official State 
Contact for this RFP.  

 
Contact information: (860) 418-8765 or Jacqueline.lewis@ct.gov  
Children’s Trust Fund, 450 Capitol Avenue, Hartford, CT 06106 

 

mailto:Jacqueline.lewis@ct.gov
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